
City Council Regular Meeting July 05, 2022 Page 1 of 3 

 
City of Sidney, MT 

City Council Regular Meeting 
July 05, 2022 6:30 PM 

115 2nd Street SE |Sidney, MT 59270 

The City Council meetings are open to the public attending in person, with masks encouraged when social 
distancing cannot be accomplished.  If the public does not wish to participate in person, they are also 

invited to participate via a Zoom meeting.  You can participate via phone: 
 

Meeting ID: 826 5725 9839  Passcode: 4332809 Call: 1-346-248-7799 
 

1. Call to Order 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

3. Aldermen Present 

4. Correction or Approval of Minutes 

a. City Council Regular Meeting 6-20-22 

b. Park and Rec Committee Meeting Minutes 

c. Police and Fire Committee Meeting Minutes 

d. Water and Sewer Committee Meeting Minutes 

e. Budget and Finance Committee Meeting Minutes 

5. Visitors 

a. Sam Ebadzad Sahraei-Food Truck in Peterson Park-Charge for electric used and $50/month for 
garbage services 

6. Public Hearing 

7. Mayor Norby 

8. Committee Meeting Work 

a. Water and Sewer Committee Meeting-Nielson-Halvorson Waterline Replacement 
(recommendation and motion) 

1



City Council Regular Meeting July 05, 2022 Page 2 of 3 

b. Water and Sewer Committee Meeting-FY22-23 Water and Sewer Budgets (recommendation, no 
motion until passing the budget) 

c. Budget and Finance Committee Meeting-Library Mill Levy (recommendation and motion to move 
forward with amending City/County contract) 

d. Budget and Finance Committee-FY22-23 Oil and Gas Fund and Donations (recommendation, 
motion with passing of budget) 

9. Alderman Requests and Committee Reports 

Parks and Recreation – Chairman Difonzo – Godfrey, Christensen | Water and Sewer – Chairman 
Koffler – Godfrey, Rasmussen 

Street and Alley – Chairman Christensen– Difonzo, Stevenson | Sanitation – Chairman Rasmussen – 
Koffler, Stevenson 

City Buildings & Street Lighting – Chairman Stevenson– Koffler, Rasmussen | Police and Fire – 
Chairman Godfrey, Godfrey, Difonzo, Christensen 

Budget and Finance – Chairman Christensen – Rasmussen, Godfrey 

10. Unfinished Business 

11. New Business 

12. City Planner 

a. Planning Board Meeting-July 19th, 2022 

13. City Attorney 

a. Ordinance 595-Updating Building Codes 

b. City/County Agreements-Fire Marshal and Building Inspector 

14. Chief of Police 

15. Public Works Director 

a. East Main Water Depot 

16. Fire Marshal/Building Inspector 

17. City Clerk/Treasurer 

a. ARPA Funding-2nd tranche received of $790,784.75 (total received $1,581,569.50) 

18. Consent Agenda 

2



City Council Regular Meeting July 05, 2022 Page 3 of 3 

a. Claims to be approved: $156,962.76 

b. Building Permits to be approved: 

2022-093         Bible Baptist Church       502 S Central           Remodel         L1-4, B54, Kenoyer 

2022-094         JC Youngquist                 2675 3rd St NW       Fence             L01A, B4, Mayo Acres 

2022-095         Everett Crum                   1281 14th St SW      Shed              M&B TR in SWSE 

19. Adjournment 

3



City Council Regular Meeting 6-20-22 June 20, 2022 Page 1 of 8 

 
City of Sidney, MT 

City Council Regular Meeting 6-20-22 
June 20, 2022 6:30 PM 

115 2nd Street SE |Sidney, MT 59270 

The City Council meetings are open to the public attending in person, with masks encouraged when social 
distancing cannot be accomplished.  If the public does not wish to participate in person, they are also 

invited to participate via a Zoom meeting.  You can participate via phone: 
 

Meeting ID: 871 9385 5436  Passcode: 4332809 Call: 1-346-248-7799 
 

1. Call to Order 

Mayor Norby called the order at meeting of the Sidney City Council to order at 6:30pm. 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

The Pledge of Allegiance was stated by all present. 

3. Aldermen Present 

Godfrey, Stevenson, Koffer and DiFonzo.  Via Phone: Christensen and Rasmussen 

4. Correction or Approval of Minutes 

a. Regular Council Meeting Minutes 6-6-22 

Motion was made to approve. 

Motion made by Alderwoman Godfrey, Seconded by Alderman Stevenson. 
Voting Yea: Alderman Koffler, Alderwoman Rasmussen, Alderman DiFonzo, Alderman Stevenson, 
Alderwoman Godfrey, Alderwoman Christensen 
 

b. Budget and Finance Committee Meeting Minutes 6-13-22 

Motion was made to approve. 

Motion made by Alderwoman Christensen, Seconded by Alderman DiFonzo. 
Voting Yea: Alderman Koffler, Alderwoman Rasmussen, Alderman DiFonzo, Alderman Stevenson, 
Alderwoman Godfrey, Alderwoman Christensen 
 

4

Item a.



City Council Regular Meeting 6-20-22 June 20, 2022 Page 2 of 8 

5. Visitors 

Jordan Mayer 

Walt McNutt 

a. Ryan Huotari-Airport request to waive Building Permit Fees ($14,051.82-$3,643.07 to Kyle Harlan, 
$10,408.75 County Fees) 

Walt McNutt, Chairman of the Airport Authority, came before the City Council to ask for the 
Building Permit Fees to be waived for the Airport.  He stated they are doing a $2.5 million dollar 
project, originally to be a $1.5 million project but after Federal regulations and have had to do an 
Airport Improvement Project, they have had to increase the project.  He stated they have 4 grants 
for the project, some of which cannot go towards building.  He stated that 78% of the project is 
eligible for the FAA grant because it is what is available to the public.  He stated the City fund the 
Airport approximately $19,000 per year, and if this is not waived most of that money will go back 
to the City for the permit. 

Clerk/Treasurer Chamberlin stated the Kyle Harlan amount has to be paid by the City regardless, 
out of the general fund. 

Motion was made to approve waiving the $10,408.75 building permit fee and the $3,643.07 Kyle 
Harlan plan review fee. 

Motion made by Alderman DiFonzo, Seconded by Alderman Koffler. 
Voting Yea: Alderman Koffler, Alderwoman Rasmussen, Alderman DiFonzo, Alderman Stevenson, 
Alderwoman Godfrey, Alderwoman Christensen 
 

b. Sidney Kiwanis Club-Closing of 5th St SW for Pie Social 7-8-22 (from Central Ave to 3rd Ave SW) 

Clerk/Treasurer Chamberlin stated Kiwanis is asking for the closing of 5th St SW on July 8th, 2022 
for their annual pie social.  She stated this is next to the Middle School and is the same as last 
year, just until 2nd Ave SW from 8am to 3pm. 

Motion was made to approve. 

Motion made by Alderwoman Godfrey, Seconded by Alderman Stevenson. 
Voting Yea: Alderman Koffler, Alderwoman Rasmussen, Alderman DiFonzo, Alderman Stevenson, 
Alderwoman Godfrey, Alderwoman Christensen 
 

6. Public Hearing 

Nothing. 

7. Mayor Norby 

5

Item a.



City Council Regular Meeting 6-20-22 June 20, 2022 Page 3 of 8 

Mayor Norby stated he was at the MLCT Board Meetings in Helena last week, witnessing some of 
the flooding.   

8. Committee Meeting Work 

a. Budget and Finance Committee 6-13-22 

1. On-Call/Call-in Policy (recommendation with resolution to follow) 

2. Exempt Employee Comp Time Policy (recommendation with resolution to follow) 

3. FY22-23 Payroll (recommendation and resolution to follow) 

4. Permissive Health Levy (recommendation and motion) 

1. Alderwoman Christensen stated the Budget and Finance Committee recommended using the 
Whitefish policy, amending it to add they can use flex time for call in and to make the police 
exempt.  Alderwoman Godfrey stated they also removed the hold over meals. 

2. Alderwoman Christensen stated they are recommending amending the exempt comp time 
policy to allow a max of 180 hours and a cash out option of 140 hours. 

3. Alderwoman Christensen stated they are recommending a 5.9% increase for employees, 
depending on evaluations, with additional increases for some employees. 

4. Alderwoman Christensen stated they are recommending doing a Permissive Health Levy for 
FY23.  Clerk/Treasurer Chamberlin explained the permissive health levy. 

Motion was made to approve the Permissive Health Levy for FY23. 

Motion made by Alderwoman Christensen, Seconded by Alderman DiFonzo. 
Voting Yea: Alderman Koffler, Alderwoman Rasmussen, Alderman DiFonzo, Alderman Stevenson, 
Alderwoman Godfrey, Alderwoman Christensen 
 

9. Alderman Requests and Committee Reports 

Parks and Recreation – Chairman Difonzo – Godfrey, Christensen | Water and Sewer – Chairman 
Koffler – Godfrey, Rasmussen 

Street and Alley – Chairman Christensen– Difonzo, Stevenson | Sanitation – Chairman Rasmussen – 
Koffler, Stevenson 

City Buildings & Street Lighting – Chairman Stevenson– Koffler, Rasmussen | Police and Fire – 
Chairman Godfrey, Godfrey, Difonzo, Christensen 

Budget and Finance – Chairman Christensen – Rasmussen, Godfrey 

6

Item a.



City Council Regular Meeting 6-20-22 June 20, 2022 Page 4 of 8 

Alderwoman Godfrey stated the building connected to Action Auto is in need of drastic 
repairs.  She stated she believes the City should start looking into condemning the building or 
adding it to the nuisance properties.  She stated she understands the building is in new ownership, 
but it is a safety and fire issue.  Mayor Norby stated he agrees and so should the building next to 
East Mont.  PWD Hintz stated the building next to East Mont had issues with their siding and it 
was hitting the East Mont building so City crews had to go over this morning to mitigate the 
problem.  Alderman DiFonzo stated that both buildings were sold to locals at auction, so they 
should be contacted and informed. 

Alderman Stevenson stated as of last week the yellow trailer house was still there and Mayor 
Norby stated it was moved out and cleaned up this weekend. 

Alderman DiFonzo asked if there has been any conversations had with the owner of the sports 
store, per the last meeting.  PWD Hintz stated he and FM/BI Rasmussen talked to him two weeks 
ago and he stated he would comply with moving the vehicles out of the right of way, but he has 
not been over to see if they have been.  He stated he also denies any skunks on the property, but 
are from the neighbors behind him.  Alderman DiFonzo stated the property needs to be cleaned 
up. 

10. Unfinished Business 

Nothing. 

11. New Business 

Nothing. 

12. City Planner 

Nothing. 

13. City Attorney 

a. Resolution 3883-FY22-23 Payroll 

City Attorney Kalil read Resolution 3883, setting FY2023 Payroll, out loud. 

Alderman DiFonzo asked to have this resolution tabled for further study and to address. 

Motion was made to table and send it to the Police and Fire Committee. 

Motion made by Alderman DiFonzo, Seconded by Alderwoman Christensen. 
Voting Yea: Alderman Koffler, Alderwoman Rasmussen, Alderman DiFonzo, Alderman Stevenson, 
Alderwoman Godfrey, Alderwoman Christensen 
 

b. Resolution 3884-Amending Employee Handbook Policies 2.22 On-Call Duty and 4.15 Overtime and 
Compensatory Times 

7

Item a.



City Council Regular Meeting 6-20-22 June 20, 2022 Page 5 of 8 

City Attorney Kalil read Resolution 3884, amending the employee handbook, out loud. 

Alderman DiFonzo stated he would like to see it added that the comp time will have to be 
approved by direct supervisor for exempt employees. 

Motion was made to approve Resolution 3884 with the addition above. 

Motion made by Alderman DiFonzo, Seconded by Alderwoman Rasmussen. 
Voting Yea: Alderman Koffler, Alderwoman Rasmussen, Alderman DiFonzo, Alderman Stevenson, 
Alderwoman Godfrey, Alderwoman Christensen 
 

c. Ordinance 595-Updating Building Codes (first reading) 

City Attorney Kalil read Ordinance 595, updating the building codes, out loud.  He stated we have 
to update that every time the State updates theirs.  He stated the only changes to the state codes 
is that none-structural residential changes do not require a building permit, per the previous city 
code, and roofs over 33% on commercial properties must have a building permit. 

Motion was made to approve the first reading of Ordinance 595. 

Motion made by Alderman Koffler, Seconded by Alderman DiFonzo. 
Voting Yea: Alderman Koffler, Alderwoman Rasmussen, Alderman DiFonzo, Alderman Stevenson, 
Alderwoman Godfrey, Alderwoman Christensen 
 

14. Chief of Police 

a. May 2022 Police Department Report 

Chief Kraft provided the May 2022 Police Department Report.  He stated the previous weekend 
was the Sunrise Festival, so they had additional patrols, which everything went smoothly.  He 
stated they also participated in the Kids Expo on Friday, which was very well attended. 

15. Public Works Director 

a. May 2022 Public Works Report 

PWD Hintz provided the May 2022 Public Works report. 

Mr. Mayer stated the 4th Avenue Street project will start tomorrow, the City has completed the 
tear out, it should take 3-4 weeks. 

b. Call for Park and Recreation Committee-Playground in South Meadow Park 

PWD Hintz stated the Adult Softball program want to install equipment in South Meadow.  He 
stated they had presented the idea to the Park and Rec Board years previously, and they approved 
as long as it was covered by a net. 

8

Item a.



City Council Regular Meeting 6-20-22 June 20, 2022 Page 6 of 8 

Clerk/Treasurer Chamberlin stated they will schedule it when Alderwoman Christensen is back. 

c. Call for Water and Sewer Committee Meeting-Neilson Halvorson Water Line Relocation 

PWD Hintz stated when they started the Nielson Halvorson sewer line, they discovered the water 
line was not where it was supposed to be, but with no valves they did not know and it is now only 
3 feet away from the new sewer line, which the minimum is 10 feet.  He stated Tony Hanson will 
relocate it for $79,000, substantially cheaper than the current project contractors.  He stated he 
would like to have a Water and Sewer Committee meeting to discuss this. 

Clerk/Treasurer Chamberlin stated she will schedule a Water and Sewer Committee when 
Alderwoman Ramussen is back. 

16. Fire Marshal/Building Inspector 

a. May 2022 Fire Run Report 

FM/BI Rasmussen provided the May 2022 Fire Run Report.  He stated is busy getting ready for 
firework stand inpsections. 

17. City Clerk/Treasurer 

a. FY21-22 Budget Transfers 

Clerk/Treasurer Chamberlin provided the City Council with the budgeted transfers for FY2022 and 
her recommendation on what transfers to complete.  She stated she is recommending the 
budgeted amounts except for the transfer from the General Fund to the Bike Path fund and the 
transfer from Oil and Gas to the Street Equipment Fund.  She stated these funds did not have the 
expenditures to warrant the transfer for this fiscal year.  She stated the final transfer on the list is 
from the Street Maintenance fund to the Snow Removal Fund.  She stated this is not a budgeted 
transfer, but a correction for the revenue.  She stated the way the taxes are set up to assess these, 
they are assessed together, so all the revenue is put into the Street Maintenance Fund, and now 
that they have recieved all the tax revenue for FY21-22 she is recommending transferring the 
allotted revenue, which is based off the percentage of budgeted revenue, into the Snow Removal 
Fund. 

Motion was made to approve. 

Motion made by Alderwoman Godfrey, Seconded by Alderman Koffler. 
Voting Yea: Alderman Koffler, Alderwoman Rasmussen, Alderman DiFonzo, Alderman Stevenson, 
Alderwoman Godfrey, Alderwoman Christensen 
 

b. May 2022 JV Report 

Clerk/Treasurer Chamberlin provided the May 2022 JV Report, stating there is only the usual UB 
and Payroll JV's. 

Motion was made to approve. 

9

Item a.



City Council Regular Meeting 6-20-22 June 20, 2022 Page 7 of 8 

Motion made by Alderwoman Christensen, Seconded by Alderman DiFonzo. 
Voting Yea: Alderman Koffler, Alderwoman Rasmussen, Alderman DiFonzo, Alderman Stevenson, 
Alderwoman Godfrey, Alderwoman Christensen 
 

c. May 2022 Water/Sewer Bank Transfer of $66,242.43 

Clerk/Treasurer Chamberlin provided the May 2022 Water/Sewer Bank Transfer of $66,242.43. 

Motion was made to approve. 

Motion made by Alderwoman Godfrey, Seconded by Alderman Koffler. 
Voting Yea: Alderman Koffler, Alderwoman Rasmussen, Alderman DiFonzo, Alderman Stevenson, 
Alderwoman Godfrey, Alderwoman Christensen 
 

d. May 2022 Treasurer's Report 

Clerk/Treasurer Chamberlin provided the May 2022 Treasurer's report.  She stated as of the May 
expenditures, there is only one fund that will require a budget amendment, and that is the TBID 
Fund.  She stated hotels that have not been paying have been paying the arrears TBID Tax, which 
the City receives and then pays the TBID Board, because they have received more than 
anticipated, they have paid out more than they have anticipated, causing a need for a budget 
amendment. 

e. Call for Budget and Finance Committee: FY22-23 Budget 

Clerk/Treasurer Chamberlin stated they will be scheduling a Budget and Finance Committee 
meeting to continue in the FY2023 budgeting when Alderwoman Christensen and Alderwoman 
Rasmussen are back in town. 

18. Consent Agenda 

Motion was made to approve. 

Motion made by Alderman Koffler, Seconded by Alderman Stevenson. 
Voting Yea: Alderman Koffler, Alderwoman Rasmussen, Alderman DiFonzo, Alderman Stevenson, 
Alderwoman Godfrey, Alderwoman Christensen 
 

a. Claims to be approved: $1,102,301.53 

Clerk/Treasurer Chamberlin stated the high amount in claims is due to the SRF bond payments, 
the SID Bond Payments, and fiscal year end payments to the County. 

b. Building Permits to be approved 

Clerk/Treasurer Chamberlin apologized for not having building permits on the agenda, the permits 
issued since the June 6th, 2022 Council Meeting will be on the July 5th, 2022 meeting.  

10

Item a.



City Council Regular Meeting 6-20-22 June 20, 2022 Page 8 of 8 

19. Adjournment 

Meeting was adjourned at 7:18 pm. 

11

Item a.



Park and Recreation Committee Meeting 6-27-22 June 27, 2022 Page 1 of 2 

 
City of Sidney, MT 

Park and Recreation Committee Meeting 6-27-22 
June 27, 2022 5:30 PM 

115 2nd Street SE |Sidney, MT 59270 

The City Council meetings are open to the public attending in person, with masks encouraged when social 
distancing cannot be accomplished.  If the public does not wish to participate in person, they are also 

invited to participate via a Zoom meeting.  You can participate via phone: 
 

Meeting ID: 816 5461 2071  Passcode: 4332809 Call: 1-346-248-7799 
 

Alderman Present: DiFonzo, Christensen and Godfrey 

Others Present: Mayor Norby, PWD Hintz, Clerk/Treasurer Chamberlin, Parks Superintendent Ridl, 
Brandie Azure (adult softball). 

1. New Business 

a. South Meadow Playground Equipment 

Ms. Azure stated this ha been a project that they have been working on for a couple of years, and 
they now have 2 proposals from companies out of Billings, which she provided the 
committee.  she stated the equipment will be geared for 2 year to 12 year children.  She stated 
they need direction location of the equipment.  She stated from what she understands it was 
originally figured into the plans to go on the west side of the concessions building, which is where 
they would like to have it located with a fence to keep them out of the parking lot.  She stated the 
number of kids at the park is increasing so having the equipment would be great.   

PWD Hintz stated they came before the Park Board and they supported the project and 
Alderwoman Christensen stated they also came to the City Council.  PWD Hintz asked if they are 
funding it themselves and Ms. Azure stated they are unsure on the cost of installation, which the 
companies would do. 

Parks Superintendent Ridl stated there has been numerous locations presented but the safest 
place would be where they are indicating.  She stated that the equipment they have chosen do 
not have a large footprint, without having swings, with relatively the same footprint as the batting 
cages that were at that location previously.  She stated that she has discussed this with 
homeowners up there and several have indicated that they are extremely interested and would 
even be willing to donate to it. 

PWD Hintz stated he has pictured the east side of the concessions with a net over it.  Ms. Azure 
stated if it was on the west they don't think they would need net coverage if it was on the west 

12

Item b.



Park and Recreation Committee Meeting 6-27-22 June 27, 2022 Page 2 of 2 

side.  Parks Superintendent stated by having it on the east it would be going over the electrical, 
water, sewer and many things underground.  Ms. Azure stated if parking is an issue to have it in 
the west side location, there is an area that they have utilized for tournaments for additional 
parking.  Alderman DiFonzo asked the purpose of installing the equipment and Ms. Azure stated 
for siblings of kids playing and for the neighborhood.  He asked how they would keep them out of 
the parking lot area and she replied they would need to install fencing, which kids running into the 
parking lot is already an issue and they need to find a way to make it more secure and deter them 
from running into where the kids are.  Mayor Norby asked if this will hinder busses turning around 
in the parking lot and Alderman DiFonzo stated they can exit by Sunflower Lane.  

Alderman DiFonzo stated he feels they need to know what kind of equipment and how large it will 
be before they can say either way.  He stated that way they can see how much of the parking lot it 
will take up.  Ms. Azure stated she was looking at whichever equipment would fit better.  PWD 
Hintz stated he would like to see a scale drawing to see the footprint also and that he could assist 
in doing that.  Ms. Azure also stated that will help them figure out how much fencing they will 
need.  She stated they have 4 sponsors that are covering a majority of the costs so far, and she is 
hoping to be able to do it this fall after the summer use is over and give time to get it 
installed.  PWD Hintz stated he will look at the CAD drawings of the park and the equipment and 
report back to the committee with a drawing. 

Motion was made to table. 

Motion made by  DiFonzo, Seconded by  Godfrey. 
Voting Yea:  DiFonzo,  Godfrey,  Christensen 

Adjourned: 5:47 p.m. 

 

13

Item b.



Police and Fire Committee Meeting 6-27-22 June 27, 2022 Page 1 of 2 

 
City of Sidney, MT 

Police and Fire Committee Meeting 6-27-22 
June 27, 2022 6:00 PM 

115 2nd Street SE |Sidney, MT 59270 

The City Council meetings are open to the public attending in person, with masks encouraged when social 
distancing cannot be accomplished.  If the public does not wish to participate in person, they are also 

invited to participate via a Zoom meeting.  You can participate via phone: 
 

Meeting ID: 845 6857 9174  Passcode: 4332809 Call: 1-346-248-7799 
 

Alderman Present: Godfrey, Christensen and DiFonzo 

Others Present: Mayor Norby, Chief Kraft, PWD Hintz, Clerk/Treasurer Chamberlin 

1. New Business 

a. FY22-23 Payroll 

Clerk/Treasurer Chamberlin provided the Police and Fire with the accurate depiction of the 
general fund, should they go with the original recommended payroll from Budget and Finance 
Committee.  She stated that will have the general fund $260,000 negative with making as many 
cuts to it as she could, including splitting attorney fees through the budget instead of being a 
general fund only item.  She stated the only thing that could be cut is the Police Department 
$65,000 for machinery and equipment. 

Alderwoman Christensen stated she believed they were recommending approval of a 7.2%, not 
option 1.  Alderman DiFonzo stated the 6-year pay scale would have to be reviewed every year to 
see if it can be done.  He stated he agrees with the 6 year plan for officers, reviewing to make sure 
the incoming and new officers to the next step.  He stated he understands how hard it can be to 
work within the general fund. 

Clerk/Treasurer Chamberlin stated in order to afford a higher increase for the police department 
she is recommending a 8% increase for entire department, which is the percentage Chief Kraft had 
applied to the starting wage, with an additional $.25 for the 3 patrol officers with longevity.  She 
stated that leaves the general fund only $100,000 negative, an amount she believes she can 
balance when the mill levies come out.  Chief Kraft stated he has not seen the proposal of the 8%. 

Alderman DiFonzo stated the reason he asked for the payroll to be tabled is to know if the general 
fund could afford the increases.  He stated he agrees to having a pay scale so we can utilize the 
plan for recruiting people.  Alderman DiFonzo stated if Chief Kraft wants time to review the figures 

14

Item c.



Police and Fire Committee Meeting 6-27-22 June 27, 2022 Page 2 of 2 

presented, this can be tabled and brought back before the Police and Fire Committee, as long as it 
is approved by the second meeting in July. 

Motion was made to table the FY22-23 payroll for further review and meet again on July 5th, 2022 
at 5:30pm. 

Motion made by  DiFonzo, Seconded by  Christensen. 
Voting Yea:  DiFonzo,  Godfrey,  Christensen 
 

15

Item c.



Water and Sewer Committee Meeting 6-29-22 June 29, 2022 Page 1 of 2 

 
City of Sidney, MT 

Water and Sewer Committee Meeting 6-29-22 
June 29, 2022 5:30 PM 

115 2nd Street SE |Sidney, MT 59270 

The City Council meetings are open to the public attending in person, with masks encouraged when social 
distancing cannot be accomplished.  If the public does not wish to participate in person, they are also 

invited to participate via a Zoom meeting.  You can participate via phone: 
 

Meeting ID: 843 5395 6416  Passcode: 4332809 Call: 1-346-248-7799 
 

Aldermen Present: 

Others Present: Mayor Norby, PWD Hintz, Clerk/Treasurer Chamberlin, Water Commissioner Elletson, 
Rebecca Thompson, Jeramy Thompson 

1. New Business 

a. Nielson-Halvorson Water Line Replacement 

PWD Hintz stated when we installed the sewer main, Water Commissioner Elletson located the 
main off the map as there was no valves on the short block, but when the dig the sewer main they 
discovered the water main only had a 6-foot separation from the sewer line and DEQ rules state 
they cannot be less than 10-foot apart.  PWD Hintz stated instead of asking for a variance with the 
DEQ they opted to install a new pipe because the existing size was too small.  PWD Hintz stated 
Western Municipal, who did the sewer line, came in extremely high and a long contract time.  He 
stated they also asked Hanson Independent, who did the relocation for $78,875.  PWD Hintz 
stated they because of these two projects they are doing a complete over hall of the street.  PWD 
Hintz stated the water budget will be paying for the line relocation and water, sewer project funds 
and streets will split the costs for the street.  PWD Hintz stated due to the complications with the 
project, he will be writing a thank you letter to the property owners who have had to deal with 
their street being torn up for such an extended time without complaining.  He stated driveways 
have been blocked, dust flying, equipment lining the street and much more. 

Motion was made to recommend approval of this relocation. 

Motion made by  Koffler, Seconded by  Rasmussen. 
Voting Yea:  Koffler,  Rasmussen,  Godfrey 

Clerk/Treasurer Chamberlin stated this will come out of FY21-22 budget, which there is funds 
available for. 

b. FY22-23 Water Department Budget 

16

Item d.



Water and Sewer Committee Meeting 6-29-22 June 29, 2022 Page 2 of 2 

PWD Hintz presented the Water and Sewer Committee with the FY 22-23 estimated budget 
expenditures for the water department.  He stated the items in yellow are items that can be put 
off for future fiscal years.  He stated he and Commissioner Elletson prepared it and they detailed 
the items listed. 

Clerk/Treasurer Chamberlin stated if all items presented were included in the budget, the water 
department is still looking at having cash savings in the budget.  She stated the main reason for 
this is because of the rate increases that have been implemented while holding off on the project, 
which has made it so there is not debt repayment on this budget that will be there in the 
upcoming fiscal years when Phase III Water Improvements are done. 

Motion was made to recommend approval of the FY22-23 Water Budget. 

Motion made by  Rasmussen, Seconded by  Koffler. 
Voting Yea:  Koffler,  Rasmussen,  Godfrey 
 

c. FY22-23 Sewer Budget 

PWD Hintz presented the Water and Sewer Committee with the FY22-23 estimated budget 
expenditures.  He stated they expenditures also include storm sewer work. He stated the items in 
yellow are items that can be put off for future fiscal years.  He stated he and the sewer 
department prepared it and they detailed the items listed. 

Clerk/Treasurer Chamberlin stated that with the storm sewer projects coming out of this fund, it is 
$575,000 negative, with over $4,000,000 in cash to cover the costs.  She stated the largest part of 
that negative balance for the FY is the Nielson/Halvorson project that the City is paying cash for a 
portion of. 

Motion was made to recommend approval of the FY22-23 budget. 

Motion made by  Koffler, Seconded by  Godfrey. 
Voting Yea:  Koffler,  Rasmussen,  Godfrey 

Adjourned at 6:14pm. 

17

Item d.



Budget and Finance Committee Meeting 6-29-22 June 29, 2022 Page 1 of 2 

 
City of Sidney, MT 

Budget and Finance Committee Meeting 6-29-22 
June 29, 2022 6:15 PM 

115 2nd Street SE |Sidney, MT 59270 

The City Council meetings are open to the public attending in person, with masks encouraged when social 
distancing cannot be accomplished.  If the public does not wish to participate in person, they are also 

invited to participate via a Zoom meeting.  You can participate via phone: 
 

Meeting ID: 892 4667 8398 Passcode: 4332809 Call: 1-346-248-7799 
 

Alderman Present: Christensen, Rasmussen, Godfrey 

Others Present: Mayor Norby, PWD Hintz, Clerk/Treasurer Chamberlin, Kelly Resieg with the Richland 
County Library. 

1. New Business 

a. FY22-23 Mill Levy's 

Clerk/Treasurer Chamberlin presented the preliminary mill levies.  She stated they are subject to 
change due to payroll not being set.  She stated due to that the main discussion under the mill 
levies would be the request of the Richland County Library to have an additional $30,000 allocated 
to them, which she stated she has in the mill levy appropriations.   

Mrs. Reisig stated this additional $30,000 would go to expanding their part time staff, who would 
not qualify for benefits that they have included in the payroll budget with the County.  She stated 
the $30,000 will cover this cost and they are not seeking additional funding beyond that at this 
time.  She further stated that due to complications with workman's comp through the County, 
they cannot have volunteers at this time.  She stated it is something they are actively working on 
it. 

Motion was made to recommend approval of increasing the library allocation to $130,000. 

Motion made by  Rasmussen, Seconded by  Godfrey. 
Voting Yea:  Rasmussen,  Godfrey,  Christensen 
 

b. FY22-23 General Fund Budget 

Clerk/Treasurer Chamberlin stated that due to the payroll being tabled in the Police and Fire 
Committee, she cannot present the general fund budget at this meeting but will present at the 
next Budget and Finance Committee Meeting. 

18

Item e.



Budget and Finance Committee Meeting 6-29-22 June 29, 2022 Page 2 of 2 

c. FY22-23 Oil and Gas Donations 

Clerk/Treasurer Chamberlin presented the Budget and Finance Committee with the Oil and Gas 
fund that includes donations.  She stated she did not make changes to the donations from the 
previous fiscal year.  She stated also coming out of the Oil and Gas Fund is the architect fee for the 
City Hall remodel and transfers to other funds.  

Alderwoman Godfrey stated she is wondering if City could get more return on their money by 
putting the Economic Development $10,000 into downtown improvements.  Alderwoman 
Rasmussen asked what Economic Development does for the City and Alderwoman Christensen 
stated they are a legislative advocate for the City and the Community.  Alderwoman Godfrey 
stated if we have $25,000 available, we could make it so entities must apply for it so the City 
knows what the money is going to, which is something we could look into doing next fiscal year.   

Motion was made to recommend cutting the Richland Economic Development motion to $8,500 
and approving the Oil and Gas Fund Budget. 

Motion made by  Rasmussen, Seconded by  Godfrey. 
Voting Yea:  Rasmussen,  Godfrey,  Christensen 

Adjourned at 6:52 pm. 

19

Item e.



City/County Planning Board 
Board meeting agenda 

 
Tuesday, July 19, 2022 @7:00pm  

Richland County Extension Office Conference Room 
1499 N Central Ave, Sidney, MT 

 
7:00 p.m.  Meeting Call to Order: President Trumpower 
Roll Call:   Verify Quorum: (P = Present; A = Absent)  

NAME, Sidney P/A NAME, Fairview P/A NAME, County/CD P/A 
Jason Schrader  Ray Trumpower  Waynette Malloy  
Amanda Siegfried  Missy Smies  Bill Linder  
Travis Rosaaen  Dan Murphy  Kathy Helmuth  
Shawn Storm  Brian Renville  Lori Utter  
    Ervin Goss (Cons Dist)  

 
Swearing in of Ervin Goss (if present), member absent from May 24th and 25th meetings  
Approval of preceding meeting minutes: May 24 and 25, 2022 minutes (postpone until 
available) 
Petitions and communications from audience (Public Comments):  

Introductions and comments: 
Conflicts of Interest: Disclose any conflicts or interest or ex parte communication on pending 
items (also see attached recusal by Amanda Seigfreid) 
Staff reports: SchMart Estates Subdivision Amendment  
Public hearing: SchMart Estates Subdivision Amendment  
Regular business:  

• Board Discussion and Recommendation (Findings of Fact/Resolution): SchMart 
Estates Subdivision Amendment  

Reports from Planning Board Committees:  
• Executive Committee – if any  
• Sidney Jurisdictional Area – if any 
• Fairview Jurisdictional Area – if any 

Written communications: If any 
Next Board meetings: 76-1-301, MCA next mandated meeting: October 4th, 2022, unless other 
business must come before the board prior  
Adjourn: President or by consensus  

20

Item a.



City/County  
Planning Board 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Planning Board Meeting 

 

will be held on:   
 

Tuesday, July 19th, 2022 at 7 pm 
at the  

Richland County Extension Office  
Conference Room,  

1499 N Central Ave, Sidney 
 
Please call Planner Office at 433-6886 to confirm meeting 

date and time or for additional information. 

21

Item a.



 

Ordinance No. 595 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SIDNEY, MONTANA, 

AMENDING TITLE 4, CHAPTER 1, BUILDING CODES, OF THE CITY CODE OF THE 

CITY OF SIDNEY, MONTANA.  

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Sidney has previously amended Title 4, 

Chapter 1, Building Codes, to modify the adopted building codes of the City of Sidney; and, 

WHEREAS, the City inadvertently adopted several codes that conflict with Montana 

Administrative Regulations; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED AS FOLLOWS by the City Council of the City 

of Sidney that Chapter 4 of Title 1 of the City Code of the City of Sidney is hereby amended as 

follows: 

4-1-1: ADOPTION OF BUILDING CODE STANDARDS:  

 

The city hereby adopts as part of this code the following international building code standards 

effective June 10 2022, together with all referenced materials, appendices and amendments 

appertaining thereto: 

 

A. 2021 International Existing Building Code, as amended by ARM 24.301.171 

 

B. 2021 International Building Code as amended by ARM 24.301.131 

 

C. 2021 International Residential Code as amended by ARM 24.301.154 

 

D. 2021 International Energy Conservation Code, as amended by ARM 24.301.161 

 

 

All as set forth or to be set forth in the Montana administrative rules (ARMs), and the same 

are adopted herein by reference, except as follows: No building permit shall be required for 

the repair of any existing building, provided the repair does not involve structural repairs. 

The repair of more than 33% of the roof of any commercial building shall be deemed 

structural.  

 

 

22

Item a.

https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?chapter_id=51781#1027797
mailto:?subject=Sidney%20Code%20Regulations&body=Below%20is%20a%20link%20to%20the%20City%20code%20which%20contains%20the%20information%20you%20requested.%0D%0Ahttp%3A%2F%2Fwww.sterlingcodifiers.com%2Fcodebook%2Findex.php%3Fbook_id%3D689%26chapter_id%3D51781%23s1027797


1st reading: _____________________ 

2nd reading: _____________________ 

 

Commissioner __________________________ moved the adoption of the foregoing Ordinance.  

The Motion was seconded by Commissioner _____________________.  On roll call vote of the 

Commissioners vote “AYE”:  _____________________________________________________  

_______________________, and the following Commissioners vote “NAY”:  

_______________________________________________.  Absent and not voting:  

_______________________________________________. 

WHEREUPON, the Motion was passed and the Ordinance declared adopted this ______ 

day of ________________________, 2022. 

  

 

 Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

City Clerk/Treasurer 

 

 

 

23

Item a.



24

Item a.



25

Item a.



26

Item a.



27

Item a.


	Top
	Item a.	City Council Regular Meeting 6-20-22
	City Council Regular Meeting 6-20-22 Minutes Document

	Item b.	Park and Rec Committee Meeting Minutes
	Park and Recreation Committee Meeting 6-27-22 Minutes Document

	Item c.	Police and Fire Committee Meeting Minutes
	Police and Fire Committee Meeting 6-27-22 Minutes Document

	Item d.	Water and Sewer Committee Meeting Minutes
	Water and Sewer Committee Meeting 6-29-22 Minutes Document

	Item e.	Budget and Finance Committee Meeting Minutes
	Budget and Finance Committee Meeting Minutes 6-29-22

	Item a.	Planning Board Meeting-July 19th, 2022
	22-0629 RCPB July 19, 2022 Agenda
	RCPB meeting notice poster, July 19, 2022

	Item a.	Ordinance 595-Updating Building Codes
	Ordinance 595- Building Update Ord 2022

	Item a.	Claims to be approved (Edit Me)
	Claims 7-5-22

	Bottom

